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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

 
 
 
 
To Board of Directors  
Usha Martin Americas, Inc  
 
 
 
Opinion  

We have audited the financial statements of Usha Martin Americas, Inc. (the “Company”), which comprise 
the balance sheets as of March 31, 2023, and 2022, the related statement of operation, changes in 
stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial 
statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of March 31, 2023, and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash 
flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audits of the financial statements in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are required to be independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are issued. 

 



 

 

 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore 
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a 
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a 
reasonable user based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

 
 
 
 
 
Braj Aggarwal, CPA, P.C. 
April 21, 2023 



Particular 2023 2022

Assets

Current Assets

Cash & cash equivalents 961,476         247,789         

Certificate of deposits 762,539         752,538         

Accounts receivable -net 5,776,164      3,112,763      

Inventories 5,117,857      5,097,953      

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2,011,430      355,794         

Total Current Assets 14,629,466    9,566,838      

Investments 1,800,000      1,800,000      

Non Current Assets

Propert Plant & Equipments:

Building and improvements 11,951           11,951           

Equipments 188,174         186,445         

Furniture & fixtures 19,348           19,347           

Vehicles 116,456         116,456         

Total 335,929         334,198         

Less: Accumulated depreciation (237,329)        (207,350)        

Propert plant & equipments, net 98,600           126,848         

Intangibles assets:

Computer Software, net of amortization 9,519             15,208           

Trademarks, net of amortization 62,490           75,672           

Intangibles assets, net 72,009           90,880           

Total Non Current Assets 170,609         217,728         

Total Assets 16,600,075$  11,584,566$  

The accompanying notes and schedules are integral part of these financial statements

Usha Martin Americas Inc
Balance Sheets 

As of March 31, 2023 and 2022



Particular 2023 2022

Liabilities & Net Assets 

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable - trade 78,029           31,747           

Accounts payable -  related parties 3,430,017      2,017,344      

Accrued liabilities 252,403         458,982         

Current portion of long term debt 6,312             6,312             

Other current liabilities 1,398,873      795,800         

Total Current Liabilities 5,165,634      3,310,185      

Non Current liabilities

Long term debt 6,194             12,418           

Total non current liabilities 6,194             12,418           

Total  liabilities 5,171,828      3,322,603      

Equity 

Preferred stock, $1 par value, 250,000 shares authorized,
Nil shares issued and outstanding

-                -                

Common stock, $1 par value, 4,750,000 shares authorized,
4,000,000 shares issued and outstanding

4,000,000      4,000,000      

Retained earning 7,428,247      4,261,963      
Total Members' Equity 11,428,247    8,261,963      

Total Liabilities & Stockholders Equity 16,600,075$  11,584,566$  

The accompanying notes and schedules are integral part of these financial statements

Usha Martin Americas Inc
Balance Sheets 

As of March 31, 2023 and 2022



Particulars 2023 2022

Net sales 26,214,992    14,836,790    

Cost of goods sold 19,784,182    10,905,289    

Gross Profit 6,430,810      3,931,501      

Operating expenses:

Depreciation and amortisation 48,852           48,962           

Employee benefits expense 1,376,697      1,079,397      

Legal & professional expense 127,374         122,184         

Other operating expenses 1,111,315      617,270         

Total operating expenses 2,664,238      1,867,815      

3,766,572      2,063,686      

Other income (expense):

Interest Income 5,687             1,601             

Gain On Sales-Assets 12,650           - 

Other miscellaneous income 266,136         4,951             

Total other income 284,473         6,552             

4,051,045      2,070,238      

Less: Interest 951 1,637             

Operating Profit Before Tax 4,050,094      2,068,600      

Provision for income tax 883,810         365,999         

Operating Profit after Interest and Tax 3,166,284$    1,702,602$    

The accompanying notes and schedules are integral part of these financial statements

Usha Martin Americas Inc 
Statements of Income 

For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022

Operating Profit before Interest and Tax and Adjustement

Profit Before Interest and Tax



Particulars
Preferred 

Stock
Common 

Stock
Retained 
Earnings

Stockholder's 
Equity

Balance as at March 31, 2021 - 4,000,000      2,559,361      6,559,361      

Net Income - - 1,702,602      1,702,602      

Balance as at March 31, 2022 -$               4,000,000$    4,261,963$    8,261,963$    

Net Income - - 3,166,284      3,166,284      

Balance as at March 31, 2023 -$               4,000,000$    7,428,247$    11,428,247$  

Usha Martin Americas Inc 
Statements of Changes in Stockholder's Equity 
For the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022

The accompanying notes and schedules are integral part of these financial statements



Particulars 2023 2022

Operating activities

Net income 3,166,284      1,702,602      
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation 48,852           48,962           

Interest Income (10,003)          -                 

Changes in working capital

(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable (2,663,401)     (1,328,877)     

(Increase)/decrease in inventory (19,904)          (1,057,351)     

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets (1,655,636)     (306,449)        

Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable 1,458,955      (1,606,199)     

Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities (206,579)        266,489         

Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities 603,073         189,934         

Cash used in operating activities  (A) 721,642$       (2,090,890)$   

Cash flow from investing activities

Proceeds from redemption of certificate of deposits -                 922,780         

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets (1,731)            (2,228)            

Cash flow from investing activities  (B) (1,731)$          920,552$       

Cash provided by financing activities

(Payment) on lease liability -                 -                 

(Repayment)/proceeds car loan (6,224)            (5,192)            

Cash provided by financing activities  (C) (6,224)$          (5,192)$          

Net cash flow changes during the period  (A+B+C) 713,688         (1,175,530)     

Cash & equivalents at  beginning of year 247,789         1,423,319      

Cash & equivalents at year end 961,476$       247,789$       

Usha Martin Americas Inc
Statements of Cash Flows

As of March 31, 2023 and 2022

The accompanying notes and schedules are integral part of these financial statements



USHA MARTIN AMERICAS, INC. 
NOTES TO AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Operations

Usha Martin Americas, Inc., (the “Company”), a Texas Corporation, was formed on April 10, 1996 and is a
wholly owned subsidiary of Usha Martin Limited (“UML”). The Company is located in Houston, Texas and
markets and sells wire rope manufactured by UML and related companies. In addition, the Company sells
other ancillary products that it imports primarily from Asia. Products are sold directly and through
distributors to companies in the oil and gas, heavy marine, construction, mining, elevator and other
industries throughout the United States, Canada, Central America and the Caribbean Islands.

Accounting Standards Recently Adopted

Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2014-09 (as revised), Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and the related amendments (collectively Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606), amends and
supersedes the current revenue recognition requirements and creates a new accounting standard. ASC
606 removes inconsistencies and weaknesses in current revenue requirements, provides a more robust
framework for addressing revenue issues, improves comparability of revenue recognition practices across
entities, industries, jurisdictions, and capital markets, provides more useful information to the users of
financial statements through improved disclosure requirements and reduces the number of requirements
to which an entity must refer. The guidance in this ASU requires an entity to recognize the amount of
revenue that it expects to be entitled for the transfer of promised goods or services to customers.
Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted ASC 606. The Company adopted this ASU using the
modified retrospective adoption method. Other than enhanced disclosure around revenue from contracts
with customers, there was no impact on the financial statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America (“GAAP”) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual reports may differ materially from those estimates.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less except
for those investments held for long-term purposes.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Company primarily invests its excess cash in deposits with various banks, and at times, these
deposits may exceed the federally insured limits. The Company manages this risk by selecting depository
institutions based, in part, upon its review of the financial stability of the institutions and has not
experienced any losses on such accounts.



USHA MARTIN AMERICAS, INC. 
NOTES TO AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

 

 
The Company sells wire rope to companies in the oil and gas, heavy machine, elevator, mining and 
construction industries. Consequently, the Company’s ability to collect amounts due from customers may 
be affected by economic fluctuations in those industries. 
 
The Company imports virtually all of its products from the United Kingdom and Asia, either from UML, 
Usha Siam Steel Industries Public Company Limited or other companies in Asia. Therefore, changes in 
domestic and international economic or political conditions could have a significant adverse effect on the 
Company’s future financial position or results of operations. 
 
Reclassifications 
 
Certain reclassifications may be made to the 2021-22 financial statements in order to conform to the 
2022-23 presentation. Such reclassifications did not change total assets, total liabilities, revenues, 
expenses or changes in net assets as reflected in the previously issued 2021-22 financial statements. 
 
Revenue Recognition 
 
The Company recognizes revenue in accordance with ASC 606 and as such, the Company identifies a 
contract with a customer, identifies the performance obligations in the contract, determines the 
transaction price, allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in the contract and 
recognizes revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation. 
 
 Performance obligations: A performance obligation is a promise in a contract to transfer a distinct 

good or service to the customer and is the unit of account in ASC 606. A contract’s transaction price 
is allocated to each distinct performance obligation and recognized as revenue when, or as, the 
performance obligation is satisfied. Revenue is recognized in accordance with contractual terms, in 
an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for 
services rendered. 
 

 Accounting methodology: Contracts with customers are created using an agreed-upon sales price. 
The Company recognizes revenue from product sales when control of the good is transferred to the 
customer, generally upon delivery of the goods, or shipment from, a Company location pursuant to 
Free on Board (“FOB”) point of origin shipping terms meaning that control is passed to the customer 
upon shipment. The Company also recognizes revenue using the point in time method pursuant to 
FOB destination where control passes to the customer once the goods arrive at the buyer’s location. 

 
 Variable consideration: All contracts are short-term and do not include warranty provisions, returns, 

associate, promotions and other similar customer incentives to customers. Sales discounts represent 
0.2% of sales and are considered immaterial. Implicit terms allowing limited rights of return and are 
inferred for errors made by the Company or defective goods. These returns are considered to be an 
assurance-type warranty, which will continue to be accounted for under existing guidance, Topic 460 
(guarantees). Accordingly, the Company estimates reserves for sales returns (bad debt) based on 
historical experience, among other factors. 
 
In the rare event of an item being returned by a customer, the sales revenue is reversed when the 
item is received back into inventory. If this crosses periods, the revenue is reversed in the month 
originally recorded. 



USHA MARTIN AMERICAS, INC. 
NOTES TO AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

 

 
 Contract balances: Under the new rules, ASC 606 requires disclosure of contract assets and 

contract liabilities due to remaining performance obligations in a contract, depending on the 
relationship between the entity’s performance and the customer’s payment. Receivables from 
contracts with customers are recorded when the right to consideration becomes unconditional, when 
control of the product is transferred to the customer. As of March 31, 2023, the Company had no 
contract assets or contract liabilities. 

 
 Disaggregation of revenue: The Company has one primary revenue stream, which is from the sale 

of various sizes of wire rope products. The Company’s primary revenue stream is from the sale of 
wire rope. The Company does have revenue from services associated with their wire rope sales, such 
as freight, however they are less than 1 percent of total sales. The type of customer does not 
influence the Company’s revenue generation. Ultimately, the Company is supplying the same goods. 
As such, there is no disaggregation and the revenue for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 is 
stated on the face of the statements of operations. 

 
Accounts Receivable 
 
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on past experience and other factors which, in 
management’s judgment, deserve current recognition in estimating possible bad debts. Such factors 
include growth and composition of accounts receivable, the relationship of the allowance for doubtful 
accounts to accounts receivable and current economic conditions. Management provides for probable 
uncollectible amounts through a charge to earnings and a credit to a valuation allowance, based on its 
assessment of the current status of individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after 
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation 
allowance and a credit to the respective receivable account. The allowance for doubtful accounts as of 
March 31, 2023, and 2022 was $236,244 and $58,900 respectively. 

 
Property and Equipment 
 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Additions, renewals and betterments are capitalized, 
whereas expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. The cost and accumulated 
depreciation and amortization of assets retired or sold are removed from the appropriate asset and 
depreciation and amortization accounts, and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in income. 
 
Depreciation for financial reporting purposes is computed using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful life of various asset classes as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Expected 
Useful Life 

Building and improvements   10-39 years 
Vehicles 5 years 
Office equipment 5 years 
Computer software 5 years 
Furniture and fixtures 7 years 
Warehouse equipment    5-10 years 



USHA MARTIN AMERICAS, INC. 
NOTES TO AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

 

 
Depreciation expense totaled $29,979 and $30,090 for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively, 
 
Long Lived Assets 
 
The Company’s long-lived assets and other assets to be held and used are reviewed for impairment in 
accordance with the guidance of FASB ASC 360-10, Property, Plant, and Equipment, whenever events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. 
Recoverability of an asset to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an 
asset to future undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such asset is 
considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the 
carrying amount of the asset exceeds its fair value. The Company has determined that there are no 
impairment losses for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022. 
 
Intangible Assets  
 
Intangible Assets are recorded at cost and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their expected 
useful life of fifteen years. Amortization expenses totaled $18,873 and $18,872 for the years ended March 
31, 2023, and 2022 respectively. 
 
Advertising and Marketing 
 
The Company’s policy is to expense all advertising costs as incurred. Advertising costs totaled $83,526 
and $12,179 for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
 
Leases 
 
The company has a lease for an office and warehouse in Houston, Texas which is classified as operating 
lease in the Company’s books. The Company incurred rental expense amounting to $156,000 for the 
period ended March 31, 2023.  
 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
 
The amounts reported in the balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, certificates of deposits, 
accounts receivable, inventory, other assets, note payable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities 
approximated their fair value because of the short-term maturities of these instruments. 
 
Inventory 
 
Inventory consists of wire rope products held for resale and is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable 
value, cost being determined using the specific identification method. The inventory balance as of March 
31, 2023 and 2022 is $5,117,857 and $5,097,954.  
 
 
 
 



USHA MARTIN AMERICAS, INC. 
NOTES TO AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

 

 
Income taxes 
 
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, which 
provides for recognition of a deferred tax asset for deductible temporary differences including net 
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards, net of a valuation allowance, and recognition of a deferred tax 
liability for taxable temporary differences. Provisions for income taxes are based on taxes payable or 
refundable for the current year and deferred taxes on temporary differences between the amount of 
taxable income and pretax financial income, and between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their 
reported amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are included in the 
financial statements at currently enacted income tax rates applicable to the period in which the deferred 
tax assets and liabilities are expected to be realized or settled. As changes in tax laws or rates are 
enacted, deferred tax assets and liabilities are adjusted through the provision for income taxes. 
 
The guidance under FASB ASC 740 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in 
an enterprise’s financial statements and prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement attribute for 
the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a 
tax return. It also provides guidance on derecognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in 
interim periods, disclosure and transition. Management evaluated the Company’s tax positions and 
concluded that the Company had taken no uncertain tax positions that require adjustment to the current 
or prior year financial statements to comply with the provisions of this guidance. With few exceptions, the 
Company is no longer subject to income tax examinations by the U.S. federal or state tax authorities for 
years before fiscal 2017. No authorities have commenced income tax examinations as of April 21, 2023. 
 
The Company is subject to Texas state franchise tax equal to one half of 1% of the lesser of: (a) 70% of 
Texas sourced gross revenue, (b) 100% of Texas sourced gross revenue less cash compensation and 
benefits, or (c) 100% of Texas sourced gross profit. 
 

2. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
The Company purchases substantially all of its inventory from related companies, UML, Brunton Wolf, 
Brunton Shaw and Usha Siam. During the years ended March 31, 2023, and 2022, the Company’s 
purchases from these companies approximated $19,401,762 and $8,100,714  respectively. 
 
For the year ended March 31, 2023, and 2022, UML charged the Company approximately $ 11,313 and 
$5,308 and UM Singapore charged $23,220 as management fees respectively . 
 
During FY 2022-23 Company sold machine amounting to $131,250 to UML India. 
 

3. CUSTOMER CONCENTRATION 
 
During the year ended March 31, 2023, approximately $7,083,351 or 28% of the Company’s sales were 
to two customers, and $3,903,271 or 26% of the Company’s sales were to two customers for the year 
ended March 31, 2022. Accounts receivable from these customers approximated $1,617,538 as of March 
31, 2023, and $419,554 as of March 31, 2022. 
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NOTES TO AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the Years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 

 

 
4. INCOME TAXES 

 
Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended March 31, 2023, and 2022 consisted of the following: 

                         
Current  tax 2022-23 2021-22
Income Taxes:

Federal 883,810                 365,999                   
State -                        -                          

Total current tax 883,810                 365,999                    
 
Because of management’s uncertainty as to whether the Company will be able to generate taxable 
income to utilize the remaining deferred tax benefits, deferred tax assets have been fully reserved. 
Subsequent recognition of these deferred tax assets would result in an income tax benefit in the year of 
such recognition. As of March 31, 2023, the Company has Nil net operating loss available for 
carryforward to offset federal taxable income in future years. 
 

Deferred Tax Assets 2022-23 2021-22
Federal -                        -                          

Deferred Tax Allowance -                        -                          

Net deferred tax asset/(liability) -                        -                          

Deferred income taxes are presented on the Balance Sheet as of March 31, 2023 and 2022 are 
as follows:

 
                           
                  

6. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
The Company evaluated subsequent events through the date the financial statement was available to be 
issued and has concluded there were no subsequent events requiring adjustments or disclosure. 
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2

The directors present their report on the company for the financial year ended 31 March 2023.

The names of each person who has been a director during the year and to date of the report are:

    Mr Anurag Bhatia

    Mr Tapas Gangopadhyay

    Mr Bhupesh Kumar Madan (Resigned 30 March 2023)

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of the report unless
otherwise stated.

The loss  of the company for the financial year after providing for income tax amounted to
$59,148 (2022: profit $196,242)

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the company during the year.

The principal activities of company during the financial year involved the importation and sale of steel
wire ropes and products.

No significant changes in the nature of the company's activity occurred during the financial year.

Since the end of last financial year, the global COVID‐19 situation has continued. The directors have
considered the impact of this on the company and have determined that there is no anticipated
material impact on the operations.

The company's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulations under a law
of the Commonwealth or of a state or territory of Australia.

There were no dividends paid or declared since the start of the period.

No options over issued shares or interests in the company were granted during or since the end of the
financial year and there were no options outstanding at the date of this report.

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the financial
year, for any person who is or has been an officer or auditor of Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd.

PrProceedings on behaloceedings on behalf of thef of the CompanCompanyy

No person has applied for leave of court under Section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001 to bring
proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene in any proceedings to which the Company is a
party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those
proceedings.



14 April 2023
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Usha Martin Australia Pty LtdUsha Martin Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 87 111 639 626ABN 87 111 639 626

Auditor's independence declarationAuditor's independence declaration
I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 31 March 2023, there
have been no contraventions of:

the auditor independence requirements as set out in section 307C of the Corporations Act
2001 in relation to the audit; and
any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Page Harrison & Co
Chartered Accountants

Gregory Richards

Dated: 14 April 2023
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Statement of prStatement of profiofit or losst or loss
FFor theor the yyearear ended endedended 31 Mar31 March 2023ch 2023

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NoteNote 20232023
$$

20222022
$$

Revenue 4 12,189,128 12,815,943
Finance income 5 42 4
Other income 4 2,488 1,815
TTotal incomeotal incomeTTTT 12,191,658 12,817,762
Changes in inventories of finished goods 775,668 384,522
Depreciation and amortisation (288,434) (313,397)
Employee benefits (939,648) (748,029)
Directors' benefits (719,683) (596,033)
Finance expenses (42,434) (58,391)
Materials, freight and consumables used (10,407,286) (10,622,138)
Other expenses (566,124) (613,271)
Bad and doubtful debts (5,274) 12,134
Provision for inventory dimunition (66,446) (13,748)
TTotal expensesotal expensesTTTT (12,259,661) (12,568,351)
PrProfiofit beft beforore income taxe income tax (68,003) 249,411
Income tax expense 7 8,855 (53,169)
PrProfiofit (loss) ft (loss) for the yor the yearear (59,148) 196,242
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Statement of financial posiStatement of financial positiontion
As at As at 31 Mar31 March 2023ch 2023

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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NoteNote 20232023
$$

20222022
$$

AssetsAssets
CurrCurrent assetsent assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 218,721 284,833
Trade and other receivables 9 2,320,816 3,768,883
Inventories 10 5,614,087 5,332,614
Deferred tax assets 16 103,018 61,066
Other assets 13 159,895 210,562
TTotal currotal currTTTT ent assetsent assets 8,416,537 9,657,958
Non-currNon-current assetsent assets
Property, plant and equipment 11 13,444 14,335
Investment in associated company 12 5,781 5,781
Right-of-use assets 14 757,048 1,031,310
TTotal non-currotal non-currTTTT ent assetsent assets 776,273 1,051,426
TTotal assetsotal assetsTTTT 9,192,810 10,709,384

LiabiLiabiliitiesties
CurrCurrent lent liabiiabiliitiesties
Trade and other payables 15 4,941,677 6,025,572
Current tax liabilities 16 - 14,892
Lease liabilities 14 279,387 256,628
Employee benefits 17 133,263 191,729
TTotal currotal currTTTT ent lent liabiiabiliitiesties 5,354,327 6,488,821
Non-currNon-current lent liabiiabilliitiesties
Lease liabilities 14 553,010 832,397
Employee benefits 17 48,437 91,982
TTotal non-currotal non-currTTTT ent lent liabiiabiliitiesties 601,447 924,379
TTotal lotal lTTTT iabiiabilliitiesties 5,955,774 7,413,200
Net assetsNet assets 3,237,036 3,296,184

EquiEquittyyttt
Share capital 19 200,000 200,000
Retained earnings 3,037,036 3,096,184
TTotal equiotal equiTTTT ttyytttt 3,237,036 3,296,184
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The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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20222022
OrOrdinarydinary

sharshareses
$$

RRetainedetained
earningsearnings

$$
TTotalotalTTTT

$$
Balance at 1 April 2021 200,000 2,899,942 3,099,942
Profit for the year - 196,242 196,242
BBalance at 31 Maralance at 31 March 2022ch 2022 200,000 3,096,184 3,296,184

20232023
OrOrdinarydinary

sharshareses
$$

RRetainedetained
earningsearnings

$$
TTotalotalTTTT

$$
Balance at 1 April 2022  200,000 3,096,184 3,296,184
Loss for the year - (59,148) (59,148)
BBalance at 31 Maralance at 31 March 2023ch 2023 200,000 3,037,036 3,237,036
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Usha Martin AUsha Martin Austrustralalia Ptia Pty Ltdy Ltdttt
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Statement of Cash Flows fStatement of Cash Flows for the yor the year ended 31 Marear ended 31 March 2023ch 2023

NoteNote 20232023
$$

20222022
$$

CACASH FLSH FLOWS FROM OPERAOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIESTING ACTIVITIESAAAA
Receipts from customers 12,717,208 11,768,234
Interest received 42 4
Government Covid-19 subsidies received - 63,385
Payments to suppliers and employees (12,384,074) (11,721,433)
Interest paid (42,434) (58,391)
Income tax received / (paid) (47,989) (28,547)

Net cash (used in)/generNet cash (used in)/generated fated frrom operom operating activiating activitiesties 24 242,753 23,252
CASH FLSH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIESOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds on sale of plant and equipment 1,351 -
Payment for property, plant and equipment (14,633) (6,910)

Net cash used in inNet cash used in invvesting activiesting activitiesties (13,282) (6,910)
CACASH FLSH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIESOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payment of lease liabilities (256,628) (250,394)
Net cash used in financing activitiesties (256,628) (250,394)
Net increase/ decrease in cash held (27,157) (234,052)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents

(38,956) (3,939)

Cash on hand at the beginning of the financial year 284,834 522,825
Cash on hand at the end of the financial yCash on hand at the end of the financial yearear 8 218,721 284,834
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Notes to the financial statementsNotes to the financial statements
FFor theor the yyearear ended endedended 31 Mar31 March 2023ch 2023
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1.1. IIntrntroductionoduction

The financial report covers Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd as an individual entity. Usha Martin Australia
Pty Ltd is a for-profit proprietary Company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

The functional and presentation currency of Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd is Australian dollars.

The principal activities of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 involved the importation
and sale of steel wire ropes and products.

The financial report was authorised for issue by the Directors on Select Date.

Comparatives are consistent with prior years, unless otherwise stated.

2.2. BBasis of prasis of prepareparationation

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in
accordance with the Australian Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001.

These financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs
modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented
below and are consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated.

3.3. Summary of signiSummary of significant acficant accounting polcounting policiesicies

a. a. RRevevenue Renue Recogniecognitiontion

Revenue from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets is recognised when persuasive
evidence (usually in the form of an executed sales agreement) of an arrangement exists and:

there has been a transfer of risks and rewards to the customer;
no further work or processing is required by the company;
the quantity and quality of the goods has been determined with reasonable accuracy;
the price is fixed or determinable;
collectability is reasonably assured.

Revenue is therefore generally recognised when title passes which is usually at the point of
delivery. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after
taking into account any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed.

Any consideration deferred is treated as the provision of finance and is discounted at a rate of
interest that is generally accepted in the market for similar arrangements. The difference between
the amount initially recognised and the amount ultimately received is interest revenue.
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3 . Summary of signi3 . Summary of significant acficant accounting polcounting policies (Continued)icies (Continued)

a . Ra . Revevenue Renue Recogniecognition (Continued)tion (Continued)

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method, which, for floating rate
financial assets is the rate inherent in the instrument. Dividend revenue is recognised when the
right to receive a dividend has been established.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

bb.. Goods and SGoods and Services Tervices TaxaxTTTT

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST),
except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
(ATO). In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset
or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from, of
payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are included in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis. The GST components of
cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which is receivable from, or payable to,
the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.

c.c. LeasingLeasing

The company applies AASB 16 Leases which sets out the principles for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for most
leases under a single on‐balance sheet model.

The company has lease contracts for premises and vehicles. Under AABS 16, the company has
applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases that it is the lessee, except
for short term leases and leases of low‐value assets. The company recognised lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right‐of‐use assets representing the right to use the underlying asset.

Right of use assetsRight of use assets

The company recognises right‐of‐use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right‐of‐use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.‐of‐use assets are subject to impairment. The cost of right‐of‐use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.

Unless the company is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right‐of‐use assets are depreciated on a straight‐line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right‐of‐use assets are subject to
impairment.
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3 . Summary of signi3 . Summary of significant acficant accounting polcounting policies (Continued)icies (Continued)

c . Leasing (Continued)c . Leasing (Continued)

Lease lLease liabiiabiliitiesties

At the commencement date of the lease, the company recognises lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in‐substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the company and payments of penalties for terminating a
lease, if the lease term reflects the company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the company uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in‐substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short‐term leases and leases of lowterm leases and leases of low‐vvalue assetsalue assets

The company applies the short‐term lease recognition exemption to its short‐term leases of
machinery and equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of lowvalue
assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low value (i.e., below $5,000). Lease
payments on short‐term leases and leases of low‐value assets are recognised as expense on a
straight‐line basis over the lease term.

d. BBorrorrowing costsowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition and construction of qualifying assets are added to
the cost up to the date when such assets are ready for their intended use. Other borrowing costs
are recognised as expenses in the year in which these are incurred.
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3 . Summary of signi3 . Summary of significant acficant accounting polcounting policies (Continued)icies (Continued)

e.e. EmploEmployyee Bee Benefienefitsts

Provision is made for the company’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered
by employees to balance date. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one year,
together with benefits arising from wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave, which will be
settled after one year, have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is
settled plus related on‐costs. Other employee benefits payable later than one year have been
measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits.

Contributions are made by the company to employee superannuation funds and are charged as
expenses when incurred.

ff. . IIncome Tncome TaxaxTTTT

The income tax expense/(benefit) for the year comprises current income tax expense/(benefit) and
deferred tax expense/(benefit).

Current income tax expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income
calculated using applicable income tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, as at reporting date.
Current tax liabilities/(assets) are therefore measured at the amounts expected to be paid
to/(recovered from) the relevant taxation authority.

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability
balances during the financial year as well as unused tax losses.

Current and deferred income tax expense/(benefit) is charged or credited directly to equity instead
of the profit or loss when the tax relates to items that are credited or charged directly to equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
Deferred tax assets also result where amounts have been fully expensed but future tax deductions
are available. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit
or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at reporting date. Their measurement also reflects the manner in which
management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits
of the deferred tax asset can be utilised. No deferred tax asset relating to unused tax losses has
been recognised at balance date.
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3 . Summary of signi3 . Summary of significant acficant accounting polcounting policies (Continued)icies (Continued)

f . If . Income Tncome Tax (Continued)ax (Continued)TTTT

Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is not probable that the reversal will
occur in the foreseeable future.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set‐off exists and it
is intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset
and liability will occur.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set‐off exists, the
deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where it is intended that net settlement
or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur in future
periods in which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be
recovered or settled.

g.g. FFororeign curreign currencyency

Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the date of transaction. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated
at the balance date rates. Non monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non monetary items measured at fair value are
reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the income
statement, except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non monetary items are recognised directly in
equity to the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity; otherwise the exchange
difference is recognised in the income statement.

h.h. Cash and Cash EquivCash and Cash Equivalentsalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts.
Bank overdrafts are shown within short‐term borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

i.i. IInnvventoriesentories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned on a
specific item basis.

j. j. IInnvvestmentsestments

Current investments are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Long term investments
are stated at cost and a diminution provision is carried where the market value is less than cost.
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3 . Summary of signi3 . Summary of significant acficant accounting polcounting policies (Continued)icies (Continued)

k.k. PrPropertopertyyttt , Plant and Equipment, Plant and Equipmentyyyy

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values
over their useful lives, using the straight‐line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The following useful lives are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Plant and equipment        1–5 years
Furniture and fixtures       6–10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

l.l. IImpairment of non-financial assetsmpairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash‐generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash‐generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre‐tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash‐generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash‐generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.
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3 . Summary of signi3 . Summary of significant acficant accounting polcounting policies (Continued)icies (Continued)

l . Il . Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)mpairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cashgenerating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that could have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash‐generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

m. m. PrProovisionsvisions

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past
events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow
can be reliably measured. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

n. n. Financial instrumentsFinancial instruments

Financial assetsFinancial assets

Financial assets are recognised initially on the date at which the company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

The company derecognises the financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial
asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by the
company is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when and only when, the company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The company has the following financial assets: loans and receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Loans and receivables comprise cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables.
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n . Financial instruments (Continued)n . Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)Financial assets (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of
three months or less. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the company’s cash management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the statement of cash flows.

Financial lFinancial liabiiabiliitiesties

Financial liabilities are recognised initially on the date, which is the date that the company becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expired.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial
position when, and only when, the company has a legal right to offset the amounts and intends
either settle on a net basis to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The company classified financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. Such financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.

Other financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables.

o.. Use of Estimates and JudgmentsUse of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Australian Accounting Standards
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

There are no judgements made by management in the application of the Australian Accounting
Standards that have a significant effect on the financial report or estimates with a significant risk of
material adjustment in the next year.

pp.. Adoption of new and rAdoption of new and revised acevised accounting standarcounting standardsds

The company has adopted all Standards which became effective for the first time at 31 March 2023
, none of the new standards had a material impact on the reported financial position or
performance. 
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44. . RRevevenue and other incomeenue and other income

a. a. RRevevenue fenue frrom continuing operom continuing operationsations

20232023
$$

20222022
$$

RRevevenue fenue frrom controm contracts wiacts with customersth customers
Sales of goods 12,515,410 12,753,289

RRevevenue fenue frrom other sourom other sourcesces
COVID-19 Government assistance - 63,385
Currency gain/(loss) (326,282) (731)

(326,282) 62,654
12,189,128 12,815,943

bb.. Other incomeOther income

Other income 2,488 1,815

c.c. ExpensesExpenses

ExpensesExpenses
Cost of sales 9,698,064 10,251,364
Bad and doubtful debts 5,274 (12,134)
Management fees 150,000 150,000
Operating lease 110,549 80,593

5. 5. Finance incomeFinance income

Interest income 42 4
42 4
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6. 6. RResulesult ft for the yor the yearear

The result for the year includes the following specific expenses:

ExpensesExpenses 20232023
$$

20222022
$$

Cost of sales 9,698,064 10,251,364
Bad and doubtful debts 5,274 (12,134)
Management fees 150,000 150,000
Operating lease 110,549 80,593

77. . IIncome tax expensencome tax expense

a. a. Components of income tax expense comprise:Components of income tax expense comprise:

Current tax (20,885) (45,485)
Deferred tax 29,740 (7,684)

8,855 (53,169)

bb. . The prima fThe prima facie tax paacie tax payyable on prable on profiofit ft frrom orom ordinary actividinary activities is rties is reconcieconciled to the income taxled to the income tax
expense/benefiexpense/benefit as ft as folollows:lows:

Prima facie tax payable on profit from ordinary activities before
income tax at 30% (2022: 25%)

20,401 (62,353)

Add tax efAdd tax effffff ect of:ect of:
Tax effect of income tax rate changes (20,885) (3,662)

Less tax efLess tax efffffff ect of:ect of:
Tax effect of permanent differences 9,339 12,846

IIncome tax atncome tax attributable to partributable to partttt ent entient entittyyttt 8,855 (53,169)
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8. 8. Cash and cash equivCash and cash equivalentsalents

a. a. BBank acank accountscounts

20232023
$$

20222022
$$

ANZ Business Classic 7836  - 7,780
Westpac Business One 0483 206,129 245,072
Westpac USD Account 3400 12,536 31,951
Petty cash 56 30

218,721 284,833

bb. . RReconcieconciliation of cashiation of cash

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is reconciled to items in the Statement of financial position as follows:

Cash  218,721 284,833

9. 9. TTrrTT ade and other rade and other receiveceivablesables

CurrCurrentent
Trade Debtors - External 2,253,054 3,761,883
Trade Debtors - Related parties 67,762 -
Other trade and other receivables - 7,000

2,320,816 3,768,883

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less any allowance for
uncollectable amounts. Terms of settlement vary up to 120 days. The carrying amount of the
receivable is deemed to reflect fair value.

Provision for doubtful debts are recognised against trade receivables based on estimated irrecoverable
amounts determined by reference to past default experience of the counterparty and an analysis of
the counterparty’s current financial position.
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9 . T9 . TrrTT ade and other rade and other receiveceivables (Continued)ables (Continued)

a. a. Age of rAge of receiveceivables that arables that are past due but not impaire past due but not impaireded

31 Mar31 March 2022ch 2022 CurrCurrentent
< 30 da< 30 daysys

oovvererduedue
< 90 da< 90 daysys

oovvererduedue
> 90 da> 90 daysys

oovvererduedue TTotalotalTTTT
Trade debtors 3,101,990 576,630 70,860 7,403 3,756,883

31 Mar31 March 2023ch 2023 CurrCurrentent
< 30 da< 30 daysys

oovvererduedue
< 90 da< 90 daysys

oovvererduedue
> 90 da> 90 daysys

oovvererduedue TTotalotalTTTT
Trade debtors 1,830,803 413,994 46,157 29,862 2,320,816

MoMovvement in the prement in the proovision fvision for doubtfor doubtful debtsul debts

20232023
$$

20222022
$$

Balance at beginning of the period - 12,134
Net provision written back - (12,134)
BBalance at end of the yalance at end of the yearear - -

10.10. IInnvventoriesentories

CurrCurrentent
Stock in transit 1,221,709 1,649,458
Stock on hand 4,523,204 3,747,536
Provision for diminition in value (130,826) (64,380)

5,614,087 5,332,614

11.11. PrPropertopertyyttt , plant and equipment, plant and equipmentyyyy

Plant and equipmentPlant and equipment
At Cost 153,276 148,561
Less Accumulated Depreciation (141,390) (137,441)

11,886 11,120
FurniFurniturture, fixture, fixtures and fies and fitttingstingsttt

At Cost 12,807 11,580
Less Accumulated Depreciation (11,249) (8,365)

1,558 3,215
13,444 14,335
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11 . Pr11 . Propertopertyyttt , plant and equipment (Continued), plant and equipment (Continued)yyyy

MoMovvements in carrying amounts of prements in carrying amounts of propertopertyyttt , plant and equipment, plant and equipmentyyyy

Plant andPlant and
equipmentequipment

$$

FurniFurniturture ande and
fixturfixtureses

$$
TTotalotalTTTT

$$
YYear ended 31 Marear ended 31 MarYYYY ch 2022ch 2022

Balance at beginning of the year 14,235 1,982 16,217
Additions 5,092 1,818 6,910
Depreciation expense (8,207) (585) (8,792)

11,120 3,215 14,335

YYear ended 31 Marear ended 31 MarYYYY ch 2023ch 2023
Balance at beginning of the year 11,120 3,215 14,335
Additions 13,407 1,227 14,634
Disposals -written down value (1,353) - (1,353)
Depreciation expense (11,288) (2,884) (14,172)

11,886 1,558 13,444

12. IInnvvestment in associated companestment in associated companyy

20232023
$$

20222022
$$

PT Usha Martin Indonesia 5,781 5,781

13. Other assetsOther assets

CurrCurrentent
Deposits paid 73,600 73,600
Prepayments 86,295 136,962

159,895 210,562

14.. LeasesLeases

a. a. compancompanyy as a lesseeas a lesseeas a lessee

The company has  leases over two buildings - Western Australia (WA) and  New South Wales
(NSW). The building lease for the NSW is for the corporate office and warehouse. There are 3
years remaining with a 5 year option extension at the discretion of the Company. The rentals are
subject to a fixed increase of 3.5% for the initial term of 10  years. Whereas the building lease
locating in WA is sublease as warehouse. There are two years remaining without the option for
extension.
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14 . Leases (Continued)14 . Leases (Continued)

i.i. RightRight-of-of-use assets-use assetsffff

20232023
$$

20222022
$$

Lease building 1,237,006 1,237,006
Accumulated depreciation (479,958) (205,696)

757,048 1,031,310

iii.i. Lease lLease liabiiabiliitiesties

1 year 312,603 302,936
1 - 5 years 577,605 890,208
TTotal undiscounted lease lotal undiscounted lease lTTTT iabiiabiliitiesties 890,208 1,193,144

Lease lLease liabiiabiliities included in the statement of financial posities included in the statement of financial positiontion
Lease liabilities - current 279,387 256,628
Lease liabilities - non-current 553,010 832,397
TTotal Lease lotal Lease lTTTT iabiiabiliitiesties 832,397 1,089,025

iiiii. i. Statement of prStatement of profiofit or loss and other comprt or loss and other comprehensivehensive incomee income

The amounts recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
relating to interest expense on lease liabilities and short-term leases or leases of low value
assets are shown below:

Interest expense on lease liabilities 42,434 58,391
Depreciation rights-of-use assets 274,262 304,605

316,696 362,996

Statement of Cash FlowsStatement of Cash Flows
Total cash outflow for leases 302,936 274,868
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15. 15. TTrrTTT ade and other paade and other payyablesables

CurrCurrentent 20232023
$$

20222022
$$

Trade payables* 4,684,949 5,731,783
Other payables 256,728 293,789

4,941,677 6,025,572

*Trade payables 
- external parties 204,241 276,991
- related parties 4,480,708 5,454,792

4,684,949 5,731,783

16. 16. TTax assets and lax assets and lTTTT iabiiabiliitiesties

CurrCurrent tax assetsent tax assets
Deferred tax 103,018 61,066

Current tax lent tax liabiiabilliitiesties
Provision for income tax - 14,892

17. . EmploEmployyee benefiee benefitsts

CurrCurrentent
Employee entitlements 133,263 191,729

Non-currNon-currentent
Employee entitlements 48,437 91,982
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18.18. Financial risk managementFinancial risk management

The company's financial instruments consist of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable,
loans and leases.

Categories of financial instrumentsCategories of financial instruments

Financial assetsFinancial assets 20232023
$$

20222022
$$

Cash and cash equivalents 218,721 284,833
Trade and other receivables 2,320,816 3,768,883
Investment 5,781 5,781

2,545,318 4,059,497

Financial lFinancial liabiiabiliitiesties
Trade and other payables 5,774,074 7,114,597

a.a. IInternterest rest rate riskate risk

The company has no external borrowings. Its parent entity provides any required financial support.

bb. . FFororeign curreign currency riskency risk

The company is exposed to currency fluctuations as it acquires inventory in US dollars and
Australian dollars and sells product in US dollars and Australian dollars.

The company adopts a natural hedge strategy by generally aligning the US currency purchases
with US currency sales and Australian currency purchases with Australian currency sales.

c.c. LiquidiLiquiditty risky riskttt

The company manages liquidity risk by monitoring cash flow forecasts and securing long payment
terms in respect of purchases.

d.d. CrCrediedit riskt risk

There is no material credit risk.

e.e. Price riskPrice risk

The company is exposed to commodity price variances in respect of steel. However, 100% of
inventory purchases are acquired from related parties.
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19.19. SharShare capie capitaltal

a.a. SharShare capie capital summarytal summary

20232023
NoNo..

20232023
$$

20222022
NoNo..

20222022
$$

Ordinary shares 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000

bb. . OrOrdinary shardinary shareses

Ordinary shares are entitled to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the
company in proportion to the number of shares held. 

At shareholders meetings each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called,
otherwise each shareholder has one vote on a show of hands. 

20.20. KKey management personnel rey management personnel rKKKK emuneremunerationation

The remuneration paid to key management personnel of Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd during the
year is as follows:

20232023
$$

20222022
$$

Short-term employee benefits 719,683 596,033

21. AAudiuditor's rtor's remuneremunerationation

Assurance services 26,000 22,000
Other services 19,200 50,200

45,200 72,200

22.22. ContingenciesContingencies

In the opinion of the Directors, the company did not have any contingencies at 2023 (2022: None).
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23. 23. RRelated partieselated parties

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more
favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated.

PPararent companent companyy

The determination of operating profit before income tax included the following items, which resulted
from transactions with the parent company:

20232023
$$

20222022
$$

Purchase of materials 4,764,034 3,375,566
Management fees 150,000 150,000

Aggregate amounts payable to the parent company 1,968,173 2,196,319

Associated companiesAssociated companies

Transactions with associated companies:

The determination of operating profit before income tax included the following items, which resulted
from:

PurPurchase of steel wirchase of steel wire pre productsoducts

    Usha Martin India Limited 832,952 2,980,824
    Usha Siam Steel Industries Public Company 3,001,861 3,563,034
    Brunton Shaw UK 319,706 78,472

Commission RCommission Receiveceiveded
  Usha Martin India Limited  11,060 -
  Usha Martin Americas Inc 68,045 -

Expense rExpense recoupmentecoupment
  Usha Martin Americas Inc 3,027 -

Aggregate amounts regate amounts receiveceivable fable frrom associated companiesom associated companies

    Usha Martin Americas Inc 67,762 -

AggrAggregate amounts paegate amounts payyable to associated companiesable to associated companies

    Usha Martin India Limited 711,170 863,258
    Usha Siam Steel Industries Public Company 1,605,333 2,412,901
    Brunton Shaw UK 321,032 57,314



Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd
ABN 87 111 639 626​

Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

27

24. Cash flow information

2023
$

2022
$

Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with profit from ordinary
activities after income tax

Profit/ (loss) from ordinary activities after income tax (59,148) 196,242
Non-cash flows in profit -  
    Depreciation 14,172 8,792
    Depreciation - right of use asset 274,262 304,605
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents  38,956 3,939
Changes to provisions -  
    Doubtful debts - (12,134)
    Inventory diminution 66,446 13,748
    Employee entitlements (102,011) 97,970
Changes in assets and liabilities -  
    (Increase)/decrease in trade debtors 1,448,067 (1,990,382)
    (Increase)/decrease in other debtors 50,667 (51,720)
    (Increase)/decrease in inventory (347,919) (1,315,823)
    (Increase)/decrease in deferred taxes (41,952) 7,685
    (Decrease)/increase in trade creditors (1,083,895) 2,750,655
    (Decrease)/increase in other creditors - (9,432)
    (Decrease)/increase in provision for income tax (14,892) 19,107

Cash flow from operations 242,753 23,252

25. Economic dependence

The continued activity of the company is dependent on the supply of product from its parent and
associated entities worldwide.

The company has a material customer that comprised 33% of the gross sales revenue of the company
for the year.

26. Events occurring after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year  which significantly
affected or may significantly affect the operations of the company, the results of those operations, or
the state of affairs of the company in future financial years.

27. Segment reporting

The company operates in one business segment being the sale of steel wire ropes and products.

The company operates predominantly in one geographical segment being Australia and New Zealand.
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28.28. CompanCompany detaiy detailsls

The registered office and principal place of business of the company is:

Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd
199 Hassall Street
Wetherill Park NSW Australia
2164

The parent entity is:

Usha Martin Singapore Pte. Ltd.



14 April 2023
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OpinionOpinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd (the company),
which comprises the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, the statement of profit or
loss, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements and the Directors' declaration.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report of the company is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including: 

giving a true and fair view of the company's  financial position as at 31 March 2023 and of its
financial performance for the year ended; and
complying with the Australian Accounting Standards Standard and the Corporations Regulations
2001.

BBasis fasis for Opinionor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Report  section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the auditor
independence requirements of the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant
to our audit of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

We confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been
given to the directors of the  company, would be the same terms if given to the directors as at the
time of this auditor's report.  

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

DirDirectors’ Rectors’ Responsibiesponsibiliitty fy fttt or the Financial Ror the Financial Reporteport

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the general purpose financial report that gives a
true and fair view in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing Usha Martin Australia Pty
Ltd’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the
Entity or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the directors  with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions
taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Page Harrison & Co
Chartered Accountants

Gregory Richards

Dated: 14 April 2023
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ScopeScope

On the basis of information provided by the directors of Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd, we have
compiled in accordance with APES 315 'Compilation of Financial Information' the special purpose
financial report of Usha Martin Australia Pty Ltd for the year ended 31 March 2023 as set out on the
following pages.

The specific purpose for which the special purpose financial report has been prepared is to provide
confidential information to the directors and the member. The extent to which Accounting Standards
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements have or have not been adopted in the
preparation of the special purpose financial report is set out in Note 1.

The directors are solely responsible for the information contained in the special purpose financial
report and have determined that the accounting policies used are consistent and are appropriate to
satisfy the requirements of the directors and for the purpose that the financial report was prepared.

Our procedures use accounting expertise to collect, classify and summarise the financial information,
which the directors provided, in compiling the financial report. Our procedures do not include
verification or validation procedures. No audit or review has been performed and accordingly no
assurance is expressed.

To the extent permitted by law, we do not accept liability for any loss or damage which any person,
other than the company, may suffer arising from any negligence on our part. No person should rely on
the special purpose financial report without having an audit or review conducted.

The  financial report was prepared for the benefit of the company and its member and the purpose
identified above. We do not accept responsibility to any other person for the contents of the special
purpose financial report.

Page Harrison & Co

Chartered Accountants

Gregory Richards

Dated: 14 April 2023
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2023
$$

20222022
$$

Sales 12,515,410 12,753,289
Cost of salesCost of sales

Opening stock 3,747,536 3,363,014
Purchases 9,401,839 9,066,596
Purchase adjustments/ discounts (55,537) (4,794)
Provision for diminution in inventory 66,446 13,748
Container repair 358 -
Cutting cost 1,005 9,120
Freight inwards 203,973 254,522
Freight outwards 78,506 78,704
Hire of equipment 14,852 12,273
Labour hire 200 4,943
Marine freight (import) 402,609 882,896
Materials testing 8,560 -
Detention fees 8,053 940
Storage 1,516 2,734
Import duty 258,391 174,564
Gas 1,345 1,060
Port service charges 81,616 138,580

14,221,268 13,998,900
Closing stock (4,523,204) (3,747,536)
Total cost of sales 9,698,064 10,251,364
Gross profit from trading 2,817,346 2,501,925
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20232023
$$

20222022
$$

IIncomencome
Gross profit from trading 2,817,346 2,501,925
Interest received 42 4
Currency gain/(loss) (326,282) (731)
COVID-19 Government assistance - 63,385
Insurance procced 2,488 -
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment - 1,815

TTotal incomeotal incomeTTTT 2,493,594 2,566,398
ExpensesExpenses

Accountancy 19,200 50,200
Advertising and promotion 16,092 12,642
Audit fees 26,000 22,000
Bad and doubtful debts 5,274 (12,134)
Bank fees and charges 2,369 1,730
Cleaning and rubbish removal 6,835 10,234
Computer expenses 9,486 2,086
Commissions 29,228 (10,023)
Consulting fees 6,977 -
Depreciation expenses 288,434 313,397
Electricity and gas 5,592 6,283
Filing fees 290 276
Fringe benefits tax 40,704 40,704
Health & Safety check 11,470 -
Insurance 60,376 51,037
Interest expenses 42,434 58,391
Leave travel allowance (10,500) 6,000
Legal and professional fees 19,131 5,177
Management fees 150,000 150,000
Motor vehicle lease 54,098 49,750
Postage, printing and stationery 4,686 8,412
Medical expenses 11,255 16,724
Payroll tax 10,246 -
Protective clothing 3,644 1,487
Provision for employee entitlements (91,511) 91,971
Relocation costs - 58,069
Rent 110,549 80,593
Repairs and maintenance 12,277 3,942
Staff amenities and training 4,547 2,390
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Standard certification 3,000 (3,000)
Subscriptions 5,213 9,097
Superannuation 135,621 108,049
Telephone 3,516 5,279
Travel expenses 111,886 24,431
Wages and salaries 1,439,408 1,139,559
Workers' compensation payout - 1,550
Workers' compensation insurance 13,770 10,684

TTotal Expensesotal ExpensesTTTT 2,561,597 2,316,987
Profit/(loss) before income tax (68,003) 249,411
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USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the vear ended March 31.2023

REPORT OF'THE BOARD OF'MANAGEMENT

The members of the Board of Management of Usha Martin Vietnam Company Limited ("the Company'')
present this report and the Company's audited financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023.

THE BOARD OF' MANAGEMENT

The members of the Management of the Company who have held business during the year and at the date of
this report are as follows:

Board of Management
Mr. Pham Phu Qui
Mr. Tapas Gangopadhyay

AUDITORS

General Director
Director

The auditors, U&I Auditing Company Limited, have performed audit on the Company's financial statements
for the year ended March 31,2023 and have expressed their willingness to accept reappointment.

BOARD OF' MANAGEMENT'S STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Management is responsible for preparing the financial statements of each fiscal year, which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of its operations and cash flows for the year. In
preparing those financial statements, the Management is required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
o state whether applicable Accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures

disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
o prepare the financial statements on the going concem basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the

Company will continue in business.

The Management confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing the
financial statements.

The Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose, with
reasonable aaoJtacy at any time, the financial position of the Company. The Management are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

STATEMENT BY THE BOARD OF'MANAGEMENT

I, Pham Phu Qui - General Director, do hereby state that the accompanying finanoial statements have been
properly drawn up in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System, and give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at March 3I, 2023 and of
its results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended.

lf of the Board of Management,

4pri120,2023
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^6n)CPA v Business Advisors

No.: 02.07-200423ruI.SG

INDEPENDTiTT AUDITORS' REPORT

To: Owner of Usha Martin Vietnam Company Limited

We have audited the accompanying financial staternents of Usha Martin Vietnam Company Limited (.,the
Company''), approved on April 20,2023, which comprise the balance sheet as at March iI, i023, the reiated
income statement, the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements. as
set out on pages 3 to 18.

Management's responsibility for the financial staternents

The Management is responsible for the prep:r,l.ion and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Vietnamese accounting stairir,*", Vietnamese enterprise accounting system and applicable
regulations relevant to the preparation and FffienJption of financial statements and for such internal control as
the Management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standaids on Auditing. Those.standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit tb obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatemeni.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected d.epend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financisl'rsfJtements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers intemal control relevant to the Company's preparation and fair presentation of
the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstanies, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's intemal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the Management, as well a"s evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present failly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at March 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Vietnamese accounting standards, Vietnamese enterprise accounting system and applicable
regu to the preparation and presentation of financial statements in Vietnam.

Director
Duong Thu Trang
Auditor
Registered No.: 1 827-2023-05 1-lRegistered No.: t050-2023-05 1 - I

For and on behalfof
U&I AUDITING COMPAI\IY LIMITED
4pri120,2023
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USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 3L,2023

BALANCE SHEET
As atMarch 3I,2023

FORMBOl-DN

Currencv: VND

ASSETS Code Notes Closing balance Opening balance

CURRENTASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash

Short-term accounts receivable
l. Short-term trade accounts receivable
2. Olher short-term receivables

fnventories
Inventory

Other current assets
l. Short-term prepaid expenses
2. Yalae added tax deductible
3. Taxes and amounts receivable from

State budget

NON.CURRENT ASSETS

Long-term receivables
Other long-term receivables

tr'ixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
- Cost
- Accumulated depreciation

Other non-current assets
1. Long-term prepaid expenses
2. Defened income tax assets

il.

ilI.

IV.

B.

II.

ilI.

100

110
111

130
131

136

140
t4l

150
151

t52

153

200

210
2t6

220
221
222
223

260
261
262

v.1

v.2
v.3

v.4

v.8

v.3

v.5

v.6

32,165,6471844

4,398,148,881
4,399,149,991

11,855,107,506
11,600,305,340

254,802,166

15,675,392,295
15,675,392,295

236,999,162
377,173

763,701.,577

72,920,41.2

1,351,680,560

L73,685,000
173,685,000

t,135'852,284
1,1.35,952,294
1,698,136,364
(562,284,080)

42,143,276
19,790,438
22,352,839

33,507r011r793

2,359,870,566
2,359,870,566

11,989,892,930
Lr,970,291,723

19,611,207

18,952,594,182
18,952,594,1.82

204,6541115
324,ggg

131,409,704

72,920,472

11516,537,952

156,695,000
156,685,000

11331,5891324
1,331,589,324
r,698,1,36,364
(366,547,040)

28,263,529
10,002,627
18,260,901

TOTAL ASSETS 270 33,517,328,404 351023,549,645

The accompanying notes are dn integral part of theseJinancial statements.
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USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY TIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

BALANCE SHEET
As at March 31,2023

FORMBOl-DN

Pham ThiMai
Chief Accountantlln charge of report

Currencv: VNI)

RESOURCES Code Notes Closing balance Opening balance

C. LIABILITIES

Short-term liabilities
1. Short-term hade accounts payable
2, Short-term advances from customers
3. Taxes and amounts payable to State budget
4, Short-term accrued expenses
5. Other short-term payables

D. OWNER'S EQUTTY

1. Owner's capital
2. Retained eamings

- Retained eamings brought forward
- Retained earnings in current year

300

310
311

312
313
31s
319

400

4Il
421

42la
42tb

Y,7

v.8
v.9

v.10

12,820,349,976

12,8201349,976
12,639,278,776

67,532,900
rt2,458,300

1,080,000

20,696,979,429

6,308,700,000
14,388,278,429
14,51.7,296,496
(129,008,058)

1411971563,159

141197,563,159
13,494,461,363

61L,682,500

9I,419,296

2018251986,486

6,308,700,000
74,517,296,496
11,380,996,887
3,136,289,599

TOTAL RESOURCES 440 33,517,328,404 35,023,549,645

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theseJinancial statements.
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USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 31,,2023

INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended March 31,2023

FORMB02-DN

Cu VND

Pham ThiMai
Chief Accountant/In charge of report

ITEMS Code Notes Current year Prior year

1. Gross sales

2. Less deductions

3. Net sales

4. Cost of sales

5. Gross prolit

6. Financial income

7. Financial expenses
In which: Interest expenses

8. Selling expenses

9, General and administration expenses

10. Profit from operating activities

11. Otherincome

12. Other expenses

13. Profit from other activities

14. Netprofitbeforetax

15. Current coryorate income tax expense

16. Defened corporate income tax expense

1,7. Net profit after tax

01

02

L0

11

20

2T

22
23

25

26

30

31

32

40

50

51

52

60

u.1

vr.2

VI.3

vr.4

VI.5

VI.6

vr.7

VI.8

43,829,903,661

111,900,000

43,718,003,661

38,964,037,369

4r7531966,292

346,564,755

1,113,454,r99-

230,917,150

3,889,247,404

(133,087,706)

51,632

63,921.

(12,289)

(133,099,995)

(4,091,937)

(129,008,058)

47,536,430,276

47,536,430,276

40,713,841,r73

618221589,103

273,986,216

236,973,92r_

203,865,455

3,0r0,r74,296

3,645,561,647

4,035,215

3t4,069

3,721,146

3,649,292,793

57r,483,493

1,509,701

31136,2891599

d:TsL/ couc r-v y

4prt120,2023

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these/inancial statements.
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USHA MARTIN YIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

CASH F'LOW STATEMENT
For the year ended March 3L,2023
(Indirect method)

FORMB03-DN

Currenc

Pham Thi Mai
Chief AccountanVln charge of report

\TND

ITEMS Code Notes Current vear Prior year

I. Cash flows from operating activities

Net profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Profits, losses ofexchange rate differences
from revaluation of accounts derived
from foreign ourrencies
Operating profit before changes in
working capital

Increase, decrease in accounts receivable
Increase, decrease in inventories
Increase, decrease in accounts payable
Increase, decrease in prepaid expenses
Corporate income tax paid

Net cash from, used in operating activities

II. Cash flows from investing activities

Additions to fixed assets

Net cash from, used in investing activities

III. Cash flows from financing activities

Net cash from, used in financing activities

Net increase, decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Impacts of exchange rate fluctuations
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

01.

02

04

08

09
10

1l
t2
15

20

40

50
60
6l
70

2L
30

v.1

(133,099,995)

195,737,040

17,229,341

79,866,386

85,492,551
3,277,201,887

(1,395,136,635)
(9,839,985)

2,037,584,204

2,037,584,204
2,359,870,566

694,rrl
4,398,1480881

3,64912821793

195,737,040

23,332,679

3,868,352,512

(5,543,496,971)
(5,588,190,520)

6,290,594,672
(8,290,558)

(608,528,334)
(1,589,569,199)

(1,036,936,364)
(1,036,936,364)

(2,626,505,563)
4,986,26r,337

174,792
2,359,870,566

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theseJinancial statements.
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USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 3L,2023

il.

NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09-DN
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunctionwith the accompanyingJinancial statements

T. CORPORATE INF'ORMATION

1. tr'orm of ownership

Usha Martin Vietnam Company Ljmited ("the Company'') has been incorporated in Vjetnam as a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise in the form of a limited liability company under the investment
certificate No. 411043000983 granted by the People's Committee of IIo Chi Minh City on
February 24,2009, as replaced by the investment registration certificate with the project code No.
215793791,5 dated December 12,2018 and the enterprise registration certificate No. 0307287151
dated February 24,2009, together with the amended certificates.

Operational period of the Company's investment project is 50 years since February 24,2009.

On February 10,20t2, the People's Committee of Long Aa Province - the Economic Zone Authority
granted the Company the branch registration certificate No. 5014000001, which was amended for
the first time on March 27,2012 for establishment of the Company's branch atF.2A, Long Hau -
Hiep Phuoc Road, Long Hau Industrial Park, Long Hau Communi, Can Giuoc District, Long An
Province, Vietnam.

The head office of the Company is located at No. l8A, Nguyen Gia Tri Street, Ward2l,Binh Tharlr
District, Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam.

The Company has leased the warehouse of Toan Phat Services Trading Logistics Joint Stock
Company for storage of goods, which is located at No. 100/1G, Dong An 2 Quarter, Binh Hoa
Ward, Thuan An City, Binh Duong Province, Vietnam.

Owner of the Company is Usha Martin Singapore Pte. Ltd., incorporated in Singapore.

The Company's total number of staffs at the end of the year is 3 ernployees (that was 2 employees at
the beginning of the year).

2, Business activities

The business activities of the Company in current year are exercising the right to export, the right
to import, the right to wholesale distribute (without wholesale establishment), and the right to
retail distribute (without retail establishment) goods with the following HS codes: 7206,7207,
7211,7213,7214,7215,7217,7227,7228,7229 and7312 for olients who are traders, units and
organizations having the right to distribute the corresponding goods or use such goods in the
manufacture and construction processes under the law of Vietnam.

3. Ordinary business cycle

Ordinary business cycle of the Company does not exceed 12 months.

FISCAL YEAR, CURRENCY rN BOOKKEEPTNG

1. Fiscal year

The Company's fiscal year is from April01 to March 31.

2. Currency

Currency officially used in bookkeeping is Vietnamese Dong (VND).



USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 31.,2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09-DN
These notes qre an integrql part ofand should be read in conjunction with the accompanyingJinancial statements

III. APPLICABLE ACCOI]NTING STAIIDARDS AND SYSTEM

1. Applicable accounting system

The Company has applied Vietnamese Accounting System in accordance with Circular No.
200/20l4nT-BTC datedDecember 22,2014, CircularNo. 75/20I5|TT-BTC dated May 18,2015
and CircularNo. 53/2016/TT-BTC dated March 21,2016 of the Ministry of Finance.

2, Declaration of adopting Accounting Standards and Accounting System

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance
with Vietnamese Accounting Standards and Vietramese Enterprise Accounting System.

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position, results
of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally
accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than Vietnam. The financial statements have been
translated from Vietnamese version issued in Vietnam into Bnglish.

IV. SUMMARYOF SIGNIF'ICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES

The significant accounting policies have been adopted by the Company in the preparation of these
financial statements as follows:

1. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions which are not in VND are translated into VND at the real exchange rates as the one
which approximates the average transfer selling and buying rate of the commercial bank where
the Company has regular transactions. The approximate exchange rate must ensure its difference
does not exceed +LL% compared with the averuge transfer selling and buying rate.

The average transfer selling and buying rate is determined daily on the basis of arithmetic average
between the daily transfer buying rate and selling rate of the commercial bank where the
Company has regular transactions.

At the balance sheet date, the Company shall use the transfer exchange rate of the commercial
bank where the Company has regular transactions to revaluate the monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies. This transfer exchange rute may be the average transfer
selling and buying rate of the commercial bank where the Company has regular transactions.

Foreign exchange differences derived from the above transactions are all disclosed in the Income
statement.

2. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash in banks, cash in transit, demand deposits
and other short-term investrnents for a period not exceeding three months that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

3. Receivables

Receivables reflect the amounts which shall be receivable from customers and others, which are
presented at net book value as reduced by provision for doubtful debts.



USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the vear ended March 3t.2023

4.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09.DN
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Jinancial statements

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the historical cost. In case the net realizable value is lower than the
historical, inventories are stated at the net realizable value. The cost of inventories should
comprise all costs ofpurchase, costs ofconversion and other directly attributable costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Net realizable value represents
the estimated selling price less all estimated costs to completion and costs to make the sale.

Inventories are calculated using the specific identification method.

Inventories are accounted for using the perpetual method.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses comprise short-term and long-term prepaid expenses, reflecting the actual costs
incurred but not yet fully charged to the expenses of the period as those costs relate to many
boollceeping periods and are allocated into the expenses over the time in which the economic
benefits associated with those costs flow to the enterprise.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of purchased fixed assets comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the assets to its working condition and location for its intended use. Expenses
incurred after initial recognition are only entitled to record to increase the historical costs of
tangible fixed assets if it is definite that, by using those assets, future economic benefits will
surely be obtained from those expenses. Incurred expenses do not satisfy the above criteria are
determined as business and operation expenses in the fiscal year.

In case of transfer or disposal of tangible fixed assets, the historical costs and accumulated
depreciation are written off while the profit or loss from the transfer or liquidation is recorded
into income or expenses in the fiscal year.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost over their estimated useful lives according to
the straight-line method. Their estimated useful lives are shown specifically as follows:

Means of transport and transmission

Years

8-10

7. Payables and accrued expenses

Payables and accrued expenses are recognized for amounts which shall be paid in the future
related to the goods purchased and the services :utilized, irrespective of whether the Company has
received the invoices from the suppliers or not.

5.

6.



USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the vear ended March 3L.2023

NOTES TO THE T'INANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09.DN
These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunction with the accompanyingJinancial statements

8. Revenue and income

Sales from selling goods

Sales from selling goods should be recognized when it can be measured reliably and satisfied all
the following conditions:

. The Company has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

. The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
assooiated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

. Sales are determined reliably. When contracts define that buyers are entitled to retum
products, goods purchased under specific conditions, the Company shall only record sales if
such specific conditions no longer exist and buyers are not entitled to return products, goods
(unless the customer is entitled to return the goods under the form of exchange for other
goods or services); and

. The economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the
costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

9. Operating leases

Leases other than financial lease are classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under
operating leases are charged to income statement on a straightline basis over the term of the
relevant lease.

10. Taxes

Corporate income tax disclosed in the income statement includes current income tax and defened
income tax.

Current income tax is based on enaoted tax rates and the results for the year as adjusted for items,
which are deemed non-assessable or disallowed including losses carried forward, if any.

Deferred income tax is calculated using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets or liabilities and their carrying amount in the
balance sheet. Deferred income tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period when the asset is rcalized or liability is settled. Deferred income tax assets are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that fufure taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

Other taxes are applied in accordance with the prevailing tax laws of Vietnam.

11. Related parties

Parties are considered as related parties if the party is able to control or impact significantly on
the other party in proposing decisions on financial and operation policies. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to same control or same significant influences.

In considering the relationship of the parties involved, it is focused on the nature of the relationship
other than the legal form.

l0



USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITEI)
Financial staternents for the vear ended March 3L.2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09-DN
These notes are an integral part ofand should be read in conjunction with the accompanyingJinancial statements

V. ADDITIONAL DETAILS OF ITEMS STATED IN THD BALANCE SHEET

1.. Cash and cash equivalents

Closing balance Opening balance

Cash on hand
Cash in bank
Total

2, Short-term trade accounts receivable

Third parties
United Mekong Holding
Tran Thanh Phong Establishment
Amos Vietnam Pte Ltd
Hai Duong Petroleum And Marine Corporation
Others

Total

3. Other receivables

Short-term deposits and mortgages
Deposits for office and warehouse leases
Container deposit charges
Recovery of import duty
and value-added tax on imports
Others
Total

Short-term
Long-term
Total

4" Inventories

Goods in transit
Merchandise
Total

\n{p

137,539,285
4,260,609,596

___li2u1!J!1

VND

88,793,413
2,271.,077,I53

____2asefi!659

Closing balance
\A{D

509,069,000
3,767,933,460
1,329,955,000
2,904,055,000
3,089,292,890

11,600,305"340

Opening balance
'trND

3,046,912,000
4,027,055,560
1,368,306,500

3,528,007,663
n,gr028IJ13

Closing balance

'TND

300,000
173,685,000
47,000,000

I84,290,959
23,211,207

____428r1d'J66

254,802,166
173.685.000
428.487.166

Openingbalance
VND

300,000
156,685,000

19,31r,207
176,296,207

19,61,1,207
156,695,000

__-r75psw

Closing balance

'trND

1,862,321,805
13,81,3,070,490

__ rsfiSpat

Opening balance

'TND

3,770,043,433
15,192,550,7+g

--'8applJu

1l



USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORM B 09. DN
These notes qre an integral part of and should be read in conjunctionwith the accompanyingJinancial statements

5. Tangible fixed assets

Means of transport
& transmission

\{p

1,699,r36,364

1,698,136,364

(366,547,040)
(195,737,040)
(562,284,080)

___J&t--l_
___ t&5$s2&l_

Closing balance Opening balance

Cost
Opening balance
Additions
Closing balance

Depreciation
Opening balance
Charge for the year
Closing balance

Carrying amount
Opening balance

Closing balance

Deferred income tax assets

The components of the Company's defened income tax assets comprise:

Accrued expenses
Loss/(Gain) on exchange rates revaluated at year-end (138,822)
Total ZZ,3SZ,g3,g

7. Short-term trade accounts payable

Closing balance Opening balance
VND \A{D

Related parties
Usha Martin Singapore Pte. Ltd.
Usha Martin Limited

Total

12,639,279,776 11.,932,625,446
- 1,561,935,917

___r2&2ilgllS ___r3pl4na63

As at March 31,2023, the Company has no outstanding overdue trade accounts payable.

'TND

22,491,660

\TND

19,293,959
(22,958)

______ fia60pgl

t2



USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 3I,2023

NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09-DN
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Jinancial statements

8. Taxes and amounts receivable from, payable to State budget

Value added tax
Value added tax
on imports
Import export duties
Corporate income tax
Personal income tax
Licensing fee
Total

Closing
balance

\{D

___111!2f12)

Opening balance
\,/ND

72,920,412

Opening balance
'TND

69,661,000
22,759,296

______214repL

3,000,000 (3,000,000)

___!d?9p!9121 _lJ1s3447-il

Closing balance
\TND

72,920,412
67,532,900

Closing balance
VND

89,700,000
22,759,300

__ry$qigq

Contributed capital

Opening
balance

\rI\ID

:
(72,920,412)-

Payable

\,fND

Paid,
withheld

\TND

4,461,117,116 (4,461,117,116)

3,706,735,203 (3,706,735,203)
45r,972,996 (451,972,996)

(72,920,412)
198,155,480 (130,622,580) 67,532,900

___s2w4g

Taxes and amounts receivable from State budget
Taxes and amounts payable to State budget

9, Short-term accrued expenses

Accrual for sales bonuses
Accrual for audit fees
Total

Per investment registration certificate and
enterprise registration certifi cate

USD

[0. Owner's equity

According to the Company's investment registration certificate and enterprise registration certificate,
the Company's investment capital and oharter capital are USD 1,000,000 and USD 300,000
respectively. The paid-up capitalby the Company's owner as at March 31,2023 is as follows:

USD
Closing balance Opening balance

\rI\ID

6,308,700,000

__ 
jiquqqpaq

\AtrD

6,309,700,000

_ j4uq9pqq
Usha Martin Singapore Pte. Ltd. 300,000 300,000
Total 300,000 300,000

Increases, decreases in owner's equity

Opening balance of prior year
Net profit of prior year

Closing balance of prior year,
Opening balance of current year

Net profit eamed in current year
Closing balance

Share capital
'TND

6,308,700,000

6,308,700,000

___ jigu9uaq

13

Retained eamings Total
VND \TND

11,380,996,997 l7,6g9,696,gg7
3,1.36,299,599 3,136,299,599

14,517,296,496 20,925,996,496
(129,008,058) (129,008,058)

__J1 88il3 _ 20pSp1t@



USHA MARTIN YIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the yeaf ended March 3I,2023

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09-DN
These notes are qn integral part ofand should be read in conjunctionwith the accompanyingJinancial statements

11. Off balance sheet items

Closing b?lance Opening bal.ance

Foreign currencies:
- USD
- SGD

2,340.09
107.00

Current year
\TND

43,829,903,66!

___43-p03,66r

111,900,000

___4l1u9ff91

2,753.69
107.00

Prior year
\{p

47,536,430,276

___47fi5fiW5

___47&5fi99!

VI. ADDITIONAL DETAILS OF'ITEMS DISCLOSED IN INCOME STATEMENT

1. Net sales

Merchandise sold

Less:
Sales retums

Net sales

2" Cost of sales

Opening balance of merchandise
Value of imports in cuffent yea.r

Import duty on merchandise
Transportation of goods

Quality inspection fees
Less: Closing balance of merchandise
Total

3. Financialincome

Interest on demand deposits
Interest on term deposits
Gain on exchange rates acquired in current year
Gain on exchange rates revaluated at year-end
Total

Current year
VND

7,214,739

322,120,675
17,229,341

346,564,755 273,986.216

Current year
\rt\ID

18,952,594,1.82
34,843,579,095

451,972,996
366,393,401
24,900,000

(1,5,675,392,295)

___3&pqlry_6e

Prior year

YNP

13,364,403,662
45,627,751,646

204,947,092
469,332,965

(18,952,594,192)

___l9JBelw1

Prior year

'TND

2,903,399
37,209,1.84

233,873,643_

t4



USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09-DN
These notes are qn integral part of and should be reqd in conjunctionwith the accompanyingJinancial statements

4. Financial expenses

Loss on exchange rates incurred in current year
Loss on exchange rates revaluated at year-end
Total

5. Selling expenses

Transportation of goods
Sales commissions
Others
Total

6, General and adminlstration expenses

Salaries
Warehouse and office leases
Others
Total

Profit before tax
Effect of:

Adjustments to increase profit before tax
Adjustments to decrease profit before tax

Taxable income

Tax loss brought forward
Assessable income

Estimated corporate income tax payable on
income from business and production activities
Corporate income tax deductible in the year

Current corporate income tax expense

Current year
VND

1,rr3,454,199_

l,ll3,454,lgg

Prior year
VND

213,641,242
23,332,679

236,973,921

Current year
\ND

131,060,000
96,037,750
13,819,400

___-9pnJsO

Prior year
VND

r73,065,455

30,900,000

------29!d{515r

Current year

'TND

2,170,777,091.
846,313,790
872,156,523

___3p20&t

Prior year
VND

1,613,I74,900
921,916,603
575,092,793

____3[r0frlp!

7, Current corporate income tax expense

The company is obliged to pay the corporate income tax at the standard rate.

Current year
\n{D

(133,099,995)

150,94t,313
(92,113,407)
(74,272,099)

Prior year
VND

3,649,292,793

103,139,534
(99,967,905)

3,653,453,522

Q4,272,089) 3,6531453,522

730,690,704
(2r9,207,211)

l5
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USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the vear ended March 31.2023

Prior year
\TND

NOTES TO THE F'INANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09-DN
These notes are an integrql part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanyingJinancial statements

No provision for current colporate income tax expense has been provided as the Company has no
taxable income arising in the year ended March 3I,2023.

Corporate income tax expense for the year ended March 31,,2023 is calculated on the estimated
assessable income. Corporate income tax expense will be determined again by the tax authority
through their tax reviews.

As the application of tax laws and regulations for different transactions, including the determination
of arm's length prices in business transactions between related parties, may be understood in
various ways, the cotporate income tax expense recognized above may be adjusted in accordance
with the conclusive decision of the tax authoritv.

8. Deferred corporate income tax expense

Deferred corporate income tax expense arising from
reimbursement of deferred income tax assets
Deferred corporate income tax income arising from
deductible temporary differences
Total

9, Expenses classified by factors

Current year
VND

18,260,901

(22,,352,838)

___3{2tW)

19,770,602

(18,260,901)

____*__$qu91

Purchases of merchandise
Staff
Depreciation and amortisation
Outsourcing services
Others
Total

VII. OTHERINF'ORMATION

Current year

'trND

451,972,996
2,I70,777,091

195,737,040
1,368,657,19r

776,276,633

___Jp63@psr

Prior year
VND

204,947,092
I,613,174,900

195,737,040
1,464,315,023

410,145,753

____$!&91U9q

1. Operating lease commitment

The Company entered into agreements under operating leases as follows:

" Office lease contract No. 19/11l20l3lHDCT dated December I0,2013, Annex No. 3 on the
extension of the office lease contractNo. 18A.T201/2022IPLGHHDTVP dated December 28,
2022with GIC VietNam Development and Investment Corporation.

. Warehouse lease contract No. 338-2022MDTPL-UMV dated July 19, 2022 with Toan Phat
Services Trading Logistics Joint Stock Company.

T6



USHA MARTIN VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED
Financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

NOTES TO THE X'INANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09-DN
These notes are an integral part of and should be read in conjunction with the accompanyingJinancial statements

As at March 31,2023, future lease amounts due under operating leases are as follows:

Current vear
IAID

On demand or within one year 722,697,966
In the second to the fifth year inclusive 736,000,000
Total @

2, Related-party transactions

RClaJed parties

Usha Martin Singapore Pte. Ltd.
UshaMartin Limited
Usha Siam Steel Industries Public Company Limited
Mr. Pham Phu Qui

Current year
VND

971,861,999
4r.493

Current year
VND

r52,41.4,425
2.270

- 175.t6

USD

68,324.77

USD

Current year
\{p

1.,384,292,000

Prior year
VND

325,325,310

__32s&4fi

Relationshin

Owner
Group Company
Group Company
General Director

Prior year
\{p

44,065,9L5,729
I,051.179

4,034,635

Prior year
VND

r,561,835,9r7
62.397

Prior year
VND

Prior year
\{D

1,229,067,000

In the year ended March 31,2023, the Company entered into significant economic transactions
with its related parties as shown in the following table:

Usha Martin Si+gaoore Pte. Ltd.:

Import of goods

Quantity (Ton)

Proceeds from discount
on defective goods

Usha Martin Limited:

Import of goods

Quantity (Ton)

USD

41,016.82

Import of goods

Quantity (Ton)

USD

6,392.15

Salaries and remuneration of General Director

Current year
USD 'fND USD

1,435,582.11 33,719,302,662 1,927,042.91.
754.461

Usha Siam Steel Industries Public Company Limited:

t7
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usHA MARTTN vmiliinr coMpANy LrMrrED
Financial statements for the year 9nded March 3t,2OZ3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FORMB09.DN
These notes are an integrol part ofand should be reqd in conjunctionwith the accompanying/inancial statements

3. Events arising after the balance sheet date

There have been no significant events occurring after the balance sheet date which would require
adjustments or disclosures to be made to the financial statements.

VIII. APPROVAL TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The lnancial statements were approved by the Management of the Company for issue on April 20,

Pham ThiMai
Chief Accountantlln charge of report

I

l'pril20,2023

l8
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